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INTRODUCTION 

This section provides analysis on the 2014-15 Financial 
Statements. It compares the reported financial results to 
Council’s own financial objectives. Readers of the 
Statements are encouraged to contact Council’s Financial 
Services Department on (02) 4732 7815 for any 
assistance required in understanding the reported results.  
 
These statements are produced in accordance with the 
Australian Accounting Standards and the NSW Local 
Government Code of Accounting Practice. The Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) has adopted 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
issued the Australian equivalents (AIFRS). The application 
of AIFRS is reflected in these Financial Statements. These 
statements are independently audited, reported to 
Council, placed on public exhibition and lodged with the 
Office of Local Government (OLG) by 31 October each 
year. 
  
Under the 1993 NSW Local Government Act, Council is 
required to produce an audited set of Financial 
Statements. Key statements produced, and included in this 
document are: 
 
 Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive 

Income 
 Statement of Financial Position 
 Statement of Changes in Equity 
 Statement of Cash Flows, and  
 Notes to the Financial Statements. 

2014-15 KEY RESULTS AND EVENTS 

 Overall income up by 14.0% to $244.9m 
 
 Total Expenses down by 4.7% to $183.5m  
 
 Total Assets up by 9.8% to $2,990m 
 
 Net Assets up by 10.2% to $2,877m 
 
 Asset $ per head of population is $15,643 
 
 Liabilities up by 1.8% to $113.4m 
 
 Liabilities per head of population is $593 
 
 Infrastructure, Property Plant & Equipment up by 9.2% 

to $2,868m 

TOTAL INCOME ($000) 

TOTAL EXPENSES ($000) 

TOTAL ASSETS ($’000) 
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Council’s financial performance for 2014-15 is characterised by: 

 a net surplus result of $61.4m for the year 

 a budget surplus of $218,408 after allowing for a number of transfers to reserve 

 an Unrestricted Current Ratio of 1.64:1, up from 1.10 in 2013-14 

 an increase in assets from $2,722m in 2013-14 to $2,990m in 2014-15, with assets per capita of 

$15,643 per person (population estimate of 191,170) per person during this period 

 taking into account three Investment Properties sold during 2014-15, an increase of $1.3m in the 

value of Council’s Investment Properties to $15.4m 

 a slight increase in liabilities to a total of $113.4m in 2014-15 – with liabilities per capita of $593 

 a decrease in Rates and Annual Charges outstanding to 3.36% (2013-14, 3.87%) 

 a capital works program of $61.1m in 2014-15, including $36.2m in dedicated roads, drainage, and 

land under these roads  

 a total of 68.3% of Council’s income being derived from sources not reliant on grants and 

contributions (such as Rates and Annual Charges, and User Fees and Charges) 

 other key ratios are outlined in Note 13. 
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

ENSURING FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 
Council’s financial performance is aligned with its continued focus on long-term financial sustainability. 
We regularly review our Operational Plan and financial performance throughout the year to adapt to 
changing conditions and requirements. Council regularly reviews its Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP) 
to ensure short-term needs are considered against long-term sustainability. Council remains in a sound 
and stable financial position, due in part to the 2011-12 SRV which focused on asset renewal and 
securing the right level of resources to ensure that Council’s current services and service levels can be 
maintained. This financial sustainability however has not been achieved without challenges in the 
recent years. Council’s capacity to accommodate additional priorities can only be achieved through the 
reprioritisation of service levels. Future budgets continue to demonstrate Council’s commitment to 
productivity improvements and this continued pursuit and actively managing programs ensures that 
Council will remain financially sustainable and is building a sustainable long term platform. 
  
Council’s investment policies and strategies have been effective in producing strong returns on 
ratepayers’ funds in 2014-15. Council’s average return on investments for 2014-15 is 3.38%, which has 
considerably outperformed the average 90 day BBSW rate of 2.5%. The weighted average interest rate 
on borrowings has continued to decrease due to the lower cost of capital, and an increase in renewal 
loans. Council continues to use borrowings to fund an accelerated infrastructure program, however 
Council’s level of debt is continually monitored to ensure it is sustainable without risking service levels. 
 
Council’s operating result for the year was a surplus of $61.4m. During 2013-14, a once-off amount of 
$14.1m was paid to the Department of Planning and Infrastructure as Council’s share of the project 
costs of the Erskine Park Link Road. These funds were collected by Council through Section 94 
contributions over prior years, and this payment was recognised as an expense in 2013-14. This non-
standard use of Section 94 funds significantly impacted Council’s operating result for 2013-14. This 
amount had a significant impact throughout the statements and on Council’s indicators, particularly 
where the operating result and expenditure from operating activities are used in a calculation. This 
transaction should be taken into account when comparing the 2014-15 results with the 2013-14 results. 
Where appropriate, the discussion and impact of this transaction will be shown in the relevant parts of 
this document. 
 
The 2014-15 financial year provided the fourth instalment of Council’s Special Rate Variation (SRV). 
The additional funding has ensured that asset renewal programs could be fully implemented and 
essential City Centre Renewal could be undertaken while maintaining the services and service levels 
being demanded by our community. Council’s LTFP is attached as Special Schedule 8. 
 

DELIVERING INFRASTRUCTURE 
Local Government in NSW faces a large backlog of work to bring roads, drainage, and building assets 
to a satisfactory standard. Council’s commitment to addressing our infrastructure backlog has seen 
increased funding for asset maintenance and renewal, and development of renewal programs for all 
key asset classes in recent years. The review of the LTFP and Resource Strategy during 2010-11 
highlighted that while progress is being made in a number of asset classes, Council did not have the 
capacity to fully fund all identified asset renewal programs and addressing our infrastructure backlog 
was one of the key drivers for the 2011-12 Special Rate Variation. 
 
During 2014-15 JRA was commissioned by Council to provide a report on its Infrastructure Assets. JRA 
provided their “Infrastructure Assessment Report” in June 2015. This report found that Council’s 
infrastructure backlog presents a manageable financial risk, with the infrastructure sustainability targets 
under Fit for the Future being achievable in 5 years with an allocation of funds to renewal of assets. 
Under this scenario, priority is allocated to maintenance, then high risk renewal to optimise service and 
life cycle costs – as the amount of deferred renewal goes down, the amount of maintenance also 
reduces. 
 
The backlog previously reported in Special Schedule 7 included low risk items to bring to satisfactory 
standard. The report of JRA recalculated the backlog to align with community expectations for 
affordable levels of service and remove upgrade / expansion amounts. The primary strategy will be to 
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW (CONTINUED) 

commence an ongoing process of community engagement to balance service levels, and risks and 
revenues, while continuing to work with surrounding Councils on efficiency improvement. Special 
Schedule 7 - “Report on Infrastructure Assets” - in the attached Financial Statements has been updated 
with this methodology. This has resulted in a decrease in the estimated cost to bring to satisfactory 
standard (BTS) from $42.1m in 2013-14 to $15.9m in 2014-15. 
 

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION REFORMS 
On 4 June 2010, the Premier of NSW announced changes to the Developer Contributions planning process which 
capped residential development contributions to $20,000 per new lot/dwelling. On 31 August 2010, this cap was 
increased to $30,000 per new lot/dwelling for greenfield release areas and applies to the Werrington Enterprise 
Living and Learning (WELL) Precinct and Glenmore Park Stage 2.  
 
As a consequence of a Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA) being negotiating with Glenmore Park Stage 2 
landowners, the cap’s impact is limited to the WELL Precinct. The infrastructure funding gap arising for new 
development in the WELL Precinct is estimated at $46.5 million and would affect the WELL Precinct, District Open 
Space, and Cultural Facilities s94 Plans. 
  
Following analysis of the physical, social and financial impacts of the cap on the WELL Precinct and the Penrith 
City community, Council, on 27 June 2011, resolved to require new development within the WELL Precinct to 
provide all drainage and most roadworks by way of conditions of development consent. Contributions up to 
$30,000 per lot would be levied for open space, community and cultural facilities. Application of this resolution 
seeks to ensure that no infrastructure funding gaps arise under the three contributions plans applying to the WELL 
Precinct.  
 
The White Paper – A new planning system for NSW and draft planning legislation were released on 16 April 2013. 
If the White Paper changes to the new planning system are implemented, a minimum of approximately $116 
million in contributions income would be affected, or a significant reduction in the nature and scale of facilities 
being funded and our strategic directions for certain precincts – such as Penrith City centre -  would occur. 
Contributions Plans funding open space, and community and cultural facilities would be especially significantly 
adversely affected. The White Paper does propose abandoning the $30,000 cap on contributions. 
 
The White Paper did not provide details on savings and transitional arrangements for existing contributions plans, 
resulting in uncertainty as to their future status and financial exposure for Council. Council has requested the 
Minister ensure appropriate transitional provisions apply, particularly for those s94 plans which repay advance 
funded local infrastructure. The Cultural Facilities and Kingswood Neighbourhood Centre s94 Plans are affected 
by this issue. The value of advance funded works in these plans is approximately $5.6 million. The Minister’s 
response to this issue recognises the need for appropriate transitional provisions, however to date there has yet 
to be an announcement on the Government’s intended direction. When the transitional provisions are concluded, 
Council will be better informed as to the impact on the affected plans and thus the gap that would be required to 
be funded by Council if State funding is not available. 
 
New planning legislation, including details on a new contributions system was scheduled to be enacted in 
January / February 2014, however this did not occur and no date has been announced as to when the new 
planning legislation will be enacted. 
 
Council has continued its lobbying on this and associated s94 planning issues since changes to the planning 
process and $30,000 cap were announced. In 2015 we secured lobbying support for Council’s position from 
WSROC and neighbouring councils in Blue Mountains, Liverpool and Wollondilly and MACROC is also preparing 
to examine the issue. This recognises the wide implications of the cap and transitional provisions for local 
government. 
 
 
Council’s performance in 2014-15 continues to ensure a stable financial position. This provides a strong 
grounding for Council for the growth, challenges, and opportunities that lie ahead. 

BRETT RICHARDSON 
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTANT 

ANDREW MOORE 
FINANCIAL SERVICES MANAGER 

ACTING RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
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INCOME 

SUMMARY 

 Overall income up by 14.0% to $245m 

RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES 
($’000) 

RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES 
The increase in property numbers from 68,423 in 2013-14 to 
69,662 in 2014-15, together with the approved rate increase of 
4.2% (including the SRV) has added $7.6m to Operating 
Revenue. Rates Outstanding, a key industry indicator, 
decreased to 3.36% in 2014-15 from 3.87% in 2013-14 and is 
below the industry target of 5%.  This positive result has been 
achieved following the implementation of revised debt recovery 
processes and Council will remain active in debt recovery, with 
a view to maintaining this indicator below 5%. 
 

USER CHARGES & FEES 
User Charges and Fees increased 4.6% over the 2014-15 
Financial Year, in line with expectations.  
 

INVESTMENT REVENUES 
Council’s investment portfolio as at 30 June 2015 has 
remained in line with expectations, at a total of $86.7m (2013-
14, $57.5m). This increase is mainly attributable to the 
increase in grants and contributions received in 2014-15. 
  

Rates & Annual Charges ($119.7m)

User Charges & Fees ($35.9m)

Investment Revenues ($2.7m)

Other Revenues ($8.6m)

Grants & Contributions - Operating ($30.3m)

Grants & Contributions - Capital ($46.6m)

Profit from Disposal of Assets ($0.6m)

Profit from interests in Joint Ventures & Associates
($0.6m)
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INCOME (CONTINUED) 

OTHER REVENUES 
Other Revenues increased by 37.2% during 2014-15. This was mainly due to the increase in value of 
Council’s Investment Properties of $1.3m in 2014-15.   
 

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 
Grants & Contributions have increased overall by $18.9m (32.7%). This is primarily due to increased 
levels of subdivider dedications, and grants received for such items as the Cranebrook Wetlands and 
Shared Use Pathway projects. Also in 2013-14, the Financial Assistance Grant ceased being paid in 
advance, which resulted in a timing difference between 2013-14 and 2014-15. Refer to Note 3(e) for 
further details.  
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INVESTMENT REVENUE 
($’000) 

PROPERTY NUMBERS 
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CONTRIBUTIONS ($’000) 
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EXPENSES 

SUMMARY 
 Total Expenses down by 4.7% to $183.5m 
 Employee costs up by 2.4% to $83.4m 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE COSTS 
Total employee costs increased $2m in 2014-15. This equates to 
a 2.4% increase, after accommodating an award increase of 
2.7% in July 2014, and also includes: 
 

 Increase in total Superannuation costs - $218,000 

 Skills and knowledge progression - $247,000 

 Employee performance bonuses - $473,000 

 Decreases for the provision for Employee Entitlements - 
$421,000 

 
Council contributes 9.5% Superannuation for all employees 
except those who are members of the Local Government 
Superannuation Defined Benefits Scheme (DBS). In March 2009, 
the Local Government Super Scheme (LGSS) advised that it had 
been impacted by the Global Financial Crisis and contribution 
rates from 2009-10 were doubled. In 2011-12 the LGSS revised 
their methodology of calculating Council’s additional contribution, 
and have advised Council of a flat annual fee going forward of 
approximately $1.1m per year from 2013-14. This additional fee 
is expected to continue for a further 1 to 2 years. 

EMPLOYEE COSTS ($’000) 

Employee Costs ($83.4m)

Materials & Contracts ($54.6m)

Borrowing Costs ($3.4m)

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
($21.9m)

Other Expenses ($20.2m)
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EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 

Council’s transition to Workcover’s Retro-paid Loss model for worker’s compensation insurance 
continues to provide benefits and efficiencies for Council compared to the traditional claims experience 
insurance. The total worker’s compensation expense for 2014-15 was $919,000 (2013-14, $1.5m), 
compared to the 2009-10 costs under the traditional premium of $3.1m. 
 

DEPRECIATION 
Depreciation is the allocation of the costs of an asset, based on the likely period of its useful life. The 
depreciation rates used by Council are set out in Note 1 of this document. In 2012-13, Council reviewed 
and amended the useful lives and residual value for its road, drainage, and building asset classes to 
more accurately reflect the consumption of these assets. The result was a decrease in depreciation 
expense from the previous years and more realistically represents the consumption of these assets. It 
is also a significant decrease over the previous methodology which saw depreciation as high as $39m 
in 2011-12. The review and analysis of all Council’s depreciation will continue be conducted in future 
years.  
 
Total depreciation for the year was $21.9m (2013-14, $19.7m). 
  

BORROWING COSTS 
Council’s borrowing costs continue to decrease, reflecting the lower cost that Council is able to borrow 
funds at. Council’s loan portfolio has increased slightly by $348,000, and the average rate at which 
Council has borrowed funds has decreased from 5.1% in 2013-14, to 4.5% in 2014-15, reflected in a 
reduction of borrowing costs of $392,000. 
 

OTHER EXPENSES 
The detailed Notes to the Financial Statements provide information on Other Expenses. 

DEPRECIATION ($’000) BORROWING COSTS ($’000) MATERIALS & CONTRACTS 
($’000) 
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ASSETS 

CASH POSITION 
An assessment of Council’s cash holdings at the end of the Financial Year provides a different view of 
the year’s financial information. Council’s Cash Flow Statement provides information relating to actual 
payments and receipts of cash. Investments have increased over the 2014-15 year, mainly due to an 
increase in revenues, and a decrease in expenses. At 30 June 2015, Council again recognised an 
increase in the value of its Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) of $104,000 (increase of $281,000 in 
2013-14) after Council received valuations for these investments that took into account the change in 
market, and a redemption of principal for these investments. The maturity date of these investments 
were extended beyond their initial maturity date, and have a legal maturity date of 2051 and 2057. It is 

SUMMARY 
 Total Assets up by 9.8% to $2,990m 
 Net Assets up by 10.2% to $2,877m 
 Asset $ per head of population is $15,643 
 Infrastructure, Property Plant & Equipment up by 9.2% to $2,868m 

Cash & cash equivalents ($50.1m)

Investments ($36.6m)

Receivables ($11.6m)

Inventories ($1.2m)

Other ($1.5m)

Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment ($2868.2m)

Equity accounted investments ($5.7m)

Investment Property ($15.4m)
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ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

TOTAL ASSETS ($’000) 

important to note that these investments are still paying coupons and penalty interest, and there have 
been no indications that these investments will default. Council continues to hold funds on call to 
ensure funds are immediately available if required. This amount can fluctuate and for 2014-15 the 
holdings of $3.6m are in line with Council’s targets. 
 

RESERVES 
Council operates a number of internally and externally restricted reserves. External reserves include 
unspent Section 94 funds received, special purpose grants or unexpended loans, along with domestic 
waste and sullage reserves. These reserves are maintained to ensure that the funds received are 
expended on the intended purpose, and this restriction is imposed on Council through either legislation 
or the funding body. There has been an increase in unrestricted funds held at 30 June 2015 of 
$666,000, after a decrease in 2013-14 that was impacted by the $14.1m payment to the Department of 
Infrastructure and Planning, and is also a contributing factor to the level of Council’s investment 
portfolio. 
 
Council continues to maintain a number of internal reserves as detailed in Note 6. These reserves have 
been established by Council resolution, and include provisions for Employee Leave Entitlements, 
Property Development activities, and Council’s Children’s Services operations. The maintenance of 
these reserves ensures that Council has sufficient capacity to respond to planned calls for funding in 
these areas and also provides some ability to fund unplanned expenditure for these purposes. 
 

UNRESTRICTED CURRENT RATIO 
The unrestricted current ratio for 2014-15 was 1.64:1. Council’s practice of borrowing from internal 
reserves to meet the demands of essential works required in advance of receipt of Section 94 
contributions has again been a major impact on the ratio this year. At 30 June 2015, there were six 
Section 94 plans in deficit totaling $9.0m (compared to $8.7m in 2013-14). Two plans - the Cultural 
Facilities Plan and the Lambridge Estate Plan - accounted for $6.2m of this deficit. Once adjusted for 
these internal borrowings, the adjusted indicator is 1.95:1 and is above Council’s adopted benchmark of 
1.25:1, and is above the Division of Local Government’s benchmark of 1.5:1. 
 

RECEIVABLES 
Receivables for 2014-15 totaled $11.6m, an increase compared to 2013-14 ($10m). The Rates 
Outstanding percentage decreased from 3.87% in 2013-14 to 3.36% in 2014-15, which is below the 
industry benchmark of less than 5%.  
 

INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, 
PLANT & EQUIPMENT ($’000) 

UNRESTRICTED CURRENT 
RATIO 
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ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (IPPE) increased 9.2% over the 2014-15 year to $2,868m, 
mainly due to the revaluation of Councils Road, Bridges, and Drainage assets at 30 June 2015 which 
added $205m to these assets. Total asset purchases of $61.1m included $6.2m of asset renewals and 
$54.9m for new asset purchases / construction. A summary of IPPE transactions for 2014-15 are 
shown below, with greater detail provided in Note 9: 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Vehicles purchased     48 
Vehicles sold      48 
Plant items purchased     22 
Plant items sold      15 
 
Total value of plant and vehicle purchases of $2.75m, and includes: 
 

RFS Category 7 Tanker    $190,000 
Isuzu FVR1000 Tipper (x2)   $288,000 
Toro Mowers (x2)     $248,000 

 
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 

New Computer Purchases   $268,000 
Server Infrastructure    $198,000 
Microsoft Licences     $150,000 

 
BUILDINGS AND OTHER STRUCTURE 

Civic Centre Improvements   $905,000 
 
ROAD WORKS AND DRAINAGE  

Drainage Works (excl Dedications)  $747,000 
Road Works (excl Dedications)   $7.9m 

Includes: 
Bus Shelters      $113,000 
Pathpaving      $1.22m 

 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

Road Dedications     $17.1m 
Drainage Dedications    $7.2m 

 
OTHER ASSETS 
Library Resources                                        $485,505 
 
 
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS worthy of note, either completed 
or underway during the year include: 
 

Wetland Project     $1.24m 
Great River Walk     $766,000 
Jamison Park Playground    $761,000 
Field Lighting SMS Control   $564,000 
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LIABILITIES 

The 2014-15 Debt Service Cover Ratio was 2.68 (0.72 in 2013-
14). This ratio measures the availability of operating cash to 
service debt including interest, principal, and lease payments. The 
Debt Service Cover Ratio can be misleading if comparisons are 
made without understanding the underlying situation. Much of 
Council’s loan portfolio has income streams to fund the loan 
repayments. Knowledge of the principal and interest components 
of loan payments, along with any revenue streams used to fund 
these repayments, is required if any comparison to other Councils 
is to be meaningful. Council’s approvals under the Local 
Infrastructure Renewal Scheme (LIRS) also provides an interest 
rates subsidy from the NSW Government. 
  
Total borrowings now stand at $67.8m, a slight increase of 
$348,000 (0.5%) over 2013-14.  

TOTAL BORROWINGS ($’000) 

SUMMARY 
 Liabilities up by 1.8% to $113.4m 

 Borrowings up by 0.5% to $67.8m  

 

 Payables up by 13.6% to $17.2m 

 Provisions down by 1.5% to $28.4m 

Payables ($17.2m)

Borrowings ($67.8m)

Provisions ($28.4m)
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CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

Council operates a number of controlled entities – Ripples Leisure Centre, Penrith Whitewater Stadium 
(PWS), and Penrith Performing & Visual Arts (PPVA). The financial results for these entities are 
consolidated with Council’s operations to give the overall result for the year.  
  
Each entity reports their results to Council on an annual basis. At this time, it is resolved that the 
operations of each entity are underwritten by Council until the next year’s results are reported. 
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BUSINESS ACTIVITY REPORTING 

Business activity reporting shows certain activities of Council in accordance with the National 
Competition Policy (NCP) guidelines. It attempts to portray the Financial Statements of these activities 
as if all taxes and commercial principles that applied to private enterprise were also applied to these 
activities. 
  
It must be emphasised that the business activity report is based on a number of factors: 
  

 prescribed assumptions as to rates of return, taxes and other costs 

 the inclusion of assumed costs as if they were paid 

 a particular view of where the boundary between the activity and other Council operations should be 
drawn 

 the allocation of costs which are charged to other functions in first instance, and 

 determination of the purpose for which each asset is owned, even though the purpose may be one 
of many joint purposes. 

 

The reports also assume that each year can be separately taken and analysed. Where an activity has 

irregular revenue, great variations will be reported. Property Development may well show deficits in 

some years and large surpluses in others. This is because the property strategy results in varying sales 

from year-to-year.  

  

In these statements all the businesses have generally been assumed to be operators and not owners of 

the applicable lands. This means for example, that Ripples is a business activity but the ownership of 

the land and building is outside the business activity. The business activity is then nominally charged a 

rental for use of the premises. The business activity reports show that if rentals, taxes and similar costs 

were charged some of the activities would then need a subsidy in order to pay these costs. As these 

costs are not charged, only assumed, the “Subsidy from Council” does not represent an amount 

actually paid or ever likely to be paid. It represents the difference between actual surplus and the 

assumed profit of a commercial operation.  
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Council’s Certificate—GPFR 
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INCOME STATEMENT 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at 30 June 2015 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated. 
  

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
These general purpose financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local 
Government Act (1993) and Regulation, and the NSW 
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and 
Financial Reporting issued by the NSW Office of Local 
Government, Department of Premier and Cabinet. 
Penrith Council is a not for-profit entity for the purpose 
of preparing the financial statements. 
 
a. New and amended standards adopted by 
Council 
During the current year, the following relevant 
accounting standards became mandatory and have 
been adopted by Council: 

 AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

 AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 

 AASB 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities 
 
AASB 10 introduced a new definition of control based 
on the substance of the relationship and required 
Councils to consider their involvement with other 
entities regardless of whether there was a financial 
interest. 
 
AASB 11 classified joint arrangements into either joint 
ventures (equity accounting) or joint operations 
(accounting for share of assets and liabilities). 
AASB 12 has increased the level of disclosures 
required where Council has any interests in 
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates or 
unconsolidated structured entities. 
 
b. Early adoption of standards 
Penrith Council has not elected to apply any 
pronouncements before their operative date in the 
annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2014. 
 
c. Basis of Accounting 
These financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention except for: 
i. certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss and available-for-sale 
financial assets which are all valued at fair value, 

ii. the write down of any Asset on the basis of 
Impairment (if warranted) and 

iii. certain classes of non-current assets (eg. 
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment and 
Investment Property) that are accounted for at fair 

valuation. 
 
The accrual basis of accounting has also been applied 
in their preparation. 
 
d. Significant accounting estimates and 
judgements 
The preparation of financial statements requires the 
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also 
requires management to exercise its judgement in the 
process of applying the Council's accounting policies. 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated 
and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that 
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
Penrith Council makes estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related 
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are set out 
below. 
 
e. Significant judgements in applying the entity's 
accounting policies 
 
Impairment of Receivables 
Council has made a significant judgement about the 
impairment of a number of its receivables in Note 7. 
 
Projected Section 94 Commitments 
Council has used significant judgement in determining 
future Section 94 income and expenditure in Note 17. 
  

2. THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
REPORTING ENTITY 
The City of Penrith has its principal business office at 
Penrith Civic Centre, 601 High Street, Penrith NSW 
2750. Penrith Council is empowered by the New 
South Wales Local Government Act (LGA) 1993 (as 
amended) and its Charter is specified in Section 8 of 
the Act. 
  
The General Purpose Financial Statements 
incorporate the assets and liabilities of all entities 
controlled by Council (the parent entity) and the 
results of all controlled entities and Joint Ventures for 
the financial period ended 30 June 2015. They include 
the consolidated fund and other entities through which 
Council controls resources to carry on its functions. In 
the process of reporting on the Local Government as a 
single unit, all transactions and balances between 
activities (for example, loans and transfers) have been 
eliminated. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
a. The Consolidated Fund 
The consolidated fund and other entities through 
which Council controls resources to carry on its 
functions have been included in the Financial 
Statements forming part of this report. Internal 
transactions between sections of the reporting entity 
have been eliminated in accordance with Australian 
equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 
  
Council operates a number of children’s centres and 
includes the transactions associated with these 
centres in its consolidated fund. The centres include 
18 providing long day care services, 9 providing 
before and after school care services, 1 occasional 
care service and 5 preschool services. The Penrith 
City Children’s Services Co-operative, established in 
January 2003, manages the Children’s Centres 
(excluding the Glenmore Park Child & Family Centre) 
through a delegation under S377 of the Local 
Government Act 1993.  
  
The Penrith Performing and Visual Arts Limited (which 
administers the Joan Sutherland Performing Arts 
Centre and the Penrith Regional Gallery), the Penrith 
Aquatic and Leisure Limited (which administers 
Penrith Pool and Ripples), and Penrith Whitewater 
Stadium Limited are controlled entities within the 
meaning of the accounting standards. The operating 
results of these entities before Council subsidies was 
a loss of $1.5m for Penrith Performing and Visual Arts, 
a loss of $1.3m for the Penrith Aquatic and Leisure 
Limited and a loss of $230k for the Penrith Whitewater 
Stadium Limited. Council each year makes a 
resolution to continue to guarantee the operations of 
these entities for 24 months from 1 July each year. 
  
Council committees operate the following centres 
whose finances are administered independently of 
Council. The contribution to the Financial Statements 
of each centre is shown in the table below. 
 
Other Council Committees not included in the listing 
below include Emu Plains Tennis Courts. The 
operating result for the year for this Council committee 
could not be determined due to their financial records 
not being available but are not considered material. 
 
b. Joint Arrangements 
Joint Operations 
The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and 
expenses of a joint venture activity have been 
incorporated in the financial statements under the 
appropriate headings. Details of the activity are set out 
in Note 19. 
 
Joint Ventures 
Any interests in Joint Venture Entities & Partnerships 
are accounted for using the equity method and is 
carried at cost. 

 
Under the equity method, the share of the profits or 
losses of the partnership is recognised in the income 
statement, and the share of movements in retained 

 2014-15 

Committee 

Operating 
Surplus / 
(Deficit) $ 

Net 
Assets $ 

Andromeda Community 
Centre 

2,623 9,382 

Arms of Australia Inn 653 2,174 

Autumnleaf 
Neighbourhood Centre 
Inc. 

1,724 (4,033) 

Cook Parade 
Neighbourhood Centre 

(720) (5,909) 

Coowarra Cottage 3,004 22,259 

Emu Plains Tennis 
Complex 

- 18,774 

Jamison Park Netball 
Complex 

(16,521) 37,703 

Masters Hall- U3A (4,519) 2,475 

Nepean & Community 
Neighbourhood Services 

22 30 

North Penrith Community 
Centre 

(3,774) 4,659 

North St Marys 
Neighbourhood Centre 

3,650 2,605 

Penrith International 
Friendship Committee 

(1,191) 12,363 

Penrith Schools 
Boatshed Management 
Committee 

1,489 7,364 

Penrith Valley Senior 
Citizens Centre 

3,901 65,291 

Regentville Hall 8,467 58,093 

Samuel Marsden Road 
Riding Facility 

1,261 - 

St Marys Development 
Committee 

(21,136) - 

The Community 
Connection 

1,662 6,124 

Werrington Community 
Cottage 

(362) 17,241 

Youth Centre Cleaning (3,690) (14,432) 

Total (23,457) 242,163 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

earnings & reserves is recognised in the balance 
sheet. 
 
Information about joint ventures is contained in Note 
19. 
 

 3. REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Council recognises revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and 
specific criteria have been met for each of Council’s 
activities as described below. Council bases its 
estimates on historical results, taking into 
consideration the type of customer, the type of 
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. 
  
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
measured on major income categories as follows: 
  
a. Rates, Annual Charges, Grants and 
Contributions 
Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions 
(including developer contributions) are recognised as 
revenues when Council obtains control over the 
assets comprising these receipts. Developer 
contributions may only be expended for the purposes 
for which the contributions were required but Council 
may apply contributions according to the priorities 
established in work schedules. 
  
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual 
charges is obtained at the commencement of the 
rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the 
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the 
rates. 
  
Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon 
their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification 
that a grant has been secured, and is valued at their 
fair value at the date of transfer. 
  
Income is recognised when Council obtains control of 
the contribution or the right to receive the contribution, 
it is probable that the economic benefits comprising 
the contribution will flow to Council and the amount of 
the contribution can be measured reliably. 
  
Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues 
during the financial year were obtained on condition 
that they be expended in a particular manner or used 
over a particular period and those conditions were 
undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or 
contribution is disclosed in Note 3(g). The note also 
discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution 
from prior years that was expended on Council’s 
operations during the current year. 
  
A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is 
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite 
service has not been provided at balance date. 

  
b. User Charges and Fees 
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue 
when the service has been provided, the payment is 
received, or when the penalty has been applied, 
whichever first occurs. 
  
A provision for doubtful debt is recognised when 
collection in full is no longer probable.  
  
c. Sale of Plant, Property, Infrastructure and 
Equipment 
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined 
when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to 
the buyer. 
  
d. Interest and Rents 
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 
 
Interest Income from Cash & Investments is 
accounted for using the effective interest rate at the 
date that interest is earned. 
  
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
recognised when Council obtains control over the 
assets comprising the revenue, or when the amount 
becomes an enforceable debt, whichever first occurs. 
  

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
For Statement of Cash Flows (and Statement of 
Financial Position) presentation purposes, cash and 
cash equivalents includes: 

 cash on hand 

 deposits held at call with financial institutions 

 other short-term, highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value, and 

 bank overdrafts. 
 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in 
current liabilities on the balance sheet but are 
incorporated into Cash & Cash Equivalents for 
presentation of the Cash Flow Statement. 
  

5. RECEIVABLES 
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, less 
provision for doubtful debts. Receivables are due for 
settlement no more than 30 days from the date of 
recognition. 
  
Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are 
written off. A provision for doubtful receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that 
Council will not be able to collect all amounts due 
according to the original terms of receivables. The 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

amount of the provision is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
effective interest rate. 
 

6. INVENTORIES 
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and 
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable 
and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being 
allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. 
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on 
the basis of weighted average costs. Net realisable 
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale. 
  
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale and 
stated at the lower of their carrying amount and fair 
value less costs to sell if their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. The exception to this is 
plant and motor vehicles which are turned over on a 
regular basis – these are retained in property, plant 
and equipment. 
  
An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or 
subsequent write down of the asset to fair value less 
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent 
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, 
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss 
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously 
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current 
asset is recognised at the date of derecognition. 
  
Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised 
while they are classified as held for sale. 
  
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the 
Statement of Financial Position. 
  

7. INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL 
ASSETS 
Council classifies its investments in the following 
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. 
The classification depends on the purpose for which 
the investments were acquired. Management 
determines the classification of its investments at 
initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at 
each reporting date. 
  
a. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss 
All financial assets acquired for the purpose of 
generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in 

price, or part of a portfolio with a pattern of short-term 
profit taking. 
  
b. Loans and Receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. They arise when 
Council provides money, goods or services directly to 
a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. 
They are included in current assets, except for those 
with maturities greater than 12 months after the 
Statement of Financial Position date, which are 
classified as non-current assets. Loans and 
receivables are included in receivables in the 
Statement of Financial Position. 
  
c. Held-to-Maturity Investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that Council’s management has 
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. 
  
d. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives 
that are either designated in this category or not 
classified in any of the other categories. They are 
included in non-current assets unless Council's 
management intends to dispose of the investment 
within 12 months of the Statement of Financial 
Position date. Investments are designated as available
-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed 
or determinable payments and Council intends to hold 
them for the medium- to long-term. 
  
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised 
on trade-date - the date on which Council commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all 
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit 
or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the 
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and Council 
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership. 
  
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets 
at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently 
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. Realised and 
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of the financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss category are included in the 
Income Statement in the period in which they arise. 
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of non-monetary securities classified as 
available-for-sale are recognised in equity in the 
available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve. 
When securities classified as available-for-sale are 
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value 
adjustments are included in the Income Statement as 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

gains and losses from investment securities. 
  
Council has an approved investment policy complying 
with Section 625 of the Local Government Act, Section 
212 of the Local Government (General) Regulations 
2005, and the Minister’s Order. 
  
Investments are placed and managed in accordance 
with that policy and having particular regard to 
authorised investments prescribed under the Local 
Government Investment Order. 
 
e. Impairment 
Council assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A 
financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if 
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 
one or more events that occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss 
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of 
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. In the 
case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value 
of the security below its cost is considered an indicator 
that the assets are impaired. 
 
Assets carried at amortised cost 
For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that 
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial 
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the 
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the 
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate determined under the 
contract. As a practical expedient, the group of 
financial assets may have impairment measured on 
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an 
observable market price. 
 

8. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION 
The fair value of financial assets and financial 
liabilities must be estimated for recognition and 
measurement or for disclosure purposes. The fair 
value of financial instruments traded in active markets 
is based on quoted market prices at the Statement of 
Financial Position date. The fair value of financial 
instruments that are not traded in an active market is 
determined using valuation techniques. Council uses a 
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are 
based on market conditions existing at each balance 
date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments are used for long-term debt instruments 
held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted 
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the 

remaining financial instruments. 
  
The nominal value less estimated credit 
adjustments of trade receivables and payables are 
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair 
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is 
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash 
flows at the current market interest rate that is 
available to Council for similar financial instruments. 
  

9. INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (IPPE) 
Council’s assets have been progressively revalued to 
fair value in accordance with the staged 
implementation advised by the Office of Local 
Government. At Statement of Financial Position date, 
the following classes of IPPE were stated at their fair 
value: 
  

 Operational land (internal valuation) 

 Community Land (Valuer General’s valuation) 

 Buildings (external valuation) 

 Plant and Equipment (as approximated by 
depreciated replacement cost) 

 Road assets—roads, bridges, and footpaths 
(internal valuation based on current replacement 
costs) 

 Drainage assets (internal valuation based on 
current contract costs) 

 Bulk Earthworks (no revaluation as cannot be 
reliably measured) 

 Land improvements (as approximated by 
depreciated historical cost) 

 Other Structures (as approximated by depreciated 
historical cost) 

 Other assets  (as approximated by depreciated 
historical cost) 

 Investment Properties (external valuation) – refer to 
Note 14 

  
Increases in the carrying amounts arising on 
revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation 
reserve. To the extent that the increase reverses a 
decrease previously recognising profit or loss, the 
increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases 
that reverse previous increases of the same asset are 
first charged against revaluation reserves directly in 
equity to the extent of the remaining reserve 
attributable to the asset. All other decreases are 
charged to the Income Statement. 
  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
Council and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the Income Statement during the financial 
period in which they are incurred. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets 
is calculated using the straight line method to allocate 
their cost, net of their residual values, over their 
estimated remaining useful lives. New assets are 
generally depreciated as below: 
  
Buildings 20-100 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Earthmoving Equipment 6-12 years 
Office Equipment 3-10 years 
Roads Structure 100 years 
Bridges 100 years 
Stormwater Pipes 200 years 
Other Drainage Structures 100 years 
Levee Banks 100 years 
  
Detailed examination of the roads data held by 
Council’s Asset Management department was again 
reviewed in 2015 to accurately reflect the depreciation 
charge for roads assets in light of the extensive 
maintenance program that Council has for these 
assets. Amended remaining useful lives are identified 
for the roads network. The amended useful life is then 
applied to the written down value of the individual 
roads and a more appropriate depreciation figure 
calculated. 
  
The assets’ residual values and remaining useful lives 
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
Statement of Financial Position date. An asset’s 
carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains 
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in 
the Income Statement. 
 
From 2012-13, Council revised the useful lives and 
residual value for its road, drainage, and building 
asset classes to more accurately reflect the 
consumption of these assets. This change in method 
of incorporating both a change in useful lives and the 
use of a residual value resulted in a decrease in 
depreciation expense from the previous year and now 
more realistically represents the consumption of these 
assets. This review was again conducted in 2014-15 
with the revised depreciation amounts shown in Note 
4. 
 
The residual values now used for these classes of 
assets are: 
 
Buildings   25% 
Bulk Earthworks  100% (not depreciable) 
Drainage   0-50% 
Roads   25-50% 
  
a. Materiality 
Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are 
only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds 
materiality thresholds established by Council for each 

type of asset. In determining (and in annually 
reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature 
of the asset and its estimated service life.  
  
Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during 
the year are shown below. 
  
Plant & Equipment, Capitalise 
    Office Equipment, and if Value 
    Furniture & Fittings > $2,000 
Land: 
- Council Land Capitalise 
- Open Space Capitalise 
- Land Under Roads Capitalise 
Buildings: 
- Construction/Extension Capitalise 
- Renovations Capitalise 
Other Structures Capitalise 
Roads, Bridges, Footpaths: 
- Construction/Reconstruction Capitalise 
Stormwater Drainage Capitalise 
  
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not 
subject to depreciation and are reviewed annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount 
(which is the higher of the present value of future cash 
inflows or value in use). 
  
For assets whose future economic benefits are not 
dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and 
where the future economic benefits would be replaced 
if Council were deprived thereof, the value in use is 
the depreciated replacement cost. In assessing 
impairment for these assets, a rebuttable presumption 
is made that the current replacement cost exceeds the 
original cost of acquisition. 
  
b. Land Under Roads (LUR) 
LUR is land under roadways and road reserves 
including land under footpaths, nature strips and 
median strips. 
  
Land Under Roads (LUR) acquired after 1 July 2008 is 
recognised in accordance with AASB 116—Property, 
Plant and Equipment, and AASB 1051—Land Under 
Roads.  
  
Council has previously elected to recognise LUR 
acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 
116—Property, Plant and Equipment, and AASB 
1051—Land Under Roads. Circular 09-25 issued by 
the Office of Local Government (OLG) had allowed 
councils to elect to recognise land under roads 
acquired before 1 July 2008 but defer that recognition 
until an industry-wide valuation methodology is 
determined. This methodology has been determined 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

and Council has recognised all acquired pre-1 July 
2008 using the Valuer General’s valuations at 30 June 
2012 to determine a municipal rate. Council’s total 
LUR is disclosed in Note 9. 
  

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
Investment property, principally comprising freehold 
office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and 
is not occupied by Council. Investment property is 
carried at fair value, which is based on active market 
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the 
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If 
this information is not available, Council uses 
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices in 
less active markets or discounted cash flow 
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually 
by a registered property valuer on Council staff. 
Changes in fair values are recorded in profit or loss as 
part of other income. 
 
The last full revaluation for Council’s Investment 
Properties was performed for the 2013-14 Financial 
Statements, with a desktop revaluation performed for 
2014-15 by Independent Property Valuations (IPV) Pty 
Ltd, Registered Valuer No 140911321. 
  

11. PAYABLES 
a. Goods and Services 
Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the 
supply of goods and services and are recognised as 
liabilities when the goods and services are received. 
Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of 
invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts. 
  
b. Payments Received in Advance and Deposits 
Amounts received from external parties in advance of 
service delivery, and security deposits held against 
possible damage to Council’s assets, are recognised 
as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage 
reinstated, or the amount is refunded as the case may 
be. 
  

12. BORROWINGS 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the 
Income Statement over the period of the borrowings 
using the effective interest method. 
  
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless 
Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after the 
Statement of Financial Position date. 
  
a. Borrowings Costs 
Borrowing costs are expensed except to the extent 
that they are incurred during the construction of 
qualifying assets. 
 

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any 
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 
time that is required to complete and prepare the 
asset for its intended use or sale. 
  

13. PROVISIONS 
Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are 
recognised when: Council has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is 
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount 
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses. 
  
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the 
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement 
is determined by considering the class of obligations 
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the 
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obligations may be 
small. 
   

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
a. Short-term obligations 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating 
sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees' services up to the end of the reporting 
period and are measured at the amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for 
annual leave and accumulating sick leave is 
recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All 
other short-term employee benefit obligations are 
presented as payables. 
  
b. Other long-term employee benefit obligations 
The liability for long service leave and annual leave 
which is not expected to be settled within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service is recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits and measured as the 
present value of expected future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the 
end of the reporting period using the projected unit 
credit method. Consideration is given to expected 
future wage and salary levels, experience of employee 
departures and periods of service. Expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the 
end of the reporting period on national government 
bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, 
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash 
outflows. 
 
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in 
the Statement of Financial Position if the entity does 
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for 
at least twelve months after the reporting date, 
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur. Leave entitlements not expected to be 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

settled in the next 12 months are detailed in Note 10a. 
  
c. Superannuation 
Council makes employer superannuation contributions 
in respect of its employees to the Local Government 
Superannuation Scheme and other complying funds. 
Council employees have two types of membership, 
each of which is funded differently. 
  
Accumulation Fund Members 
Accumulation funds receives both employer and 
employee contributions on a progressive basis. 
Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed 
percentage of employee earnings in accordance with 
Superannuation Guarantee Levy (9.5% in 2015, 
9.25% in 2014). No further liability accrues to the 
employer as the superannuation benefits accruing to 
employees are represented by their share of the net 
assets of the Fund. 
  
Defined Benefit Members 
Council makes employer contributions to the defined 
benefits categories of the Local Government Super 
Scheme (LGSS) at rates determined by the Scheme's 
Trustee. The rate for 2014-15 was 1.9 times members’ 
contributions (1.9 times in 2013-14) plus a basic 
benefit of 2.5% of the member’s salary (2.5% in 2013-
14). Employees also make member contributions to 
the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the Fund to 
meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust 
Deed, as they accrue. LGSS advised a revised 
payment calculation for contributions to this scheme 
would begin from 2012-13, which includes an 
additional flat rate contribution from Council to address 
the deficit that resulted from the Global Financial 
Crisis. 
  
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme—
Pool B (the Scheme) is a defined benefit plan that has 
been deemed to be a “multi-employer fund” for the 
purposes of AASB 119. Sufficient information under 
AASB 119 is not available to account for the Scheme 
as a defined benefit plan, because the assets to the 
scheme are pooled together for all employers. 
  
The amount of employer contributions to the defined 
benefits section of the Local Government 
Superannuation Scheme and recognised as an 
expense for the year ending 30 June 2015 was $2.4m 
($2.6m in 2013-14). 
 
Effective from 1 July 2013, employers are required to 
contribute additional contributions to assist in 
extinguishing the deficit that resulted from the Global 
Financial Crisis. The amount of additional 
contributions payable until the deficit is extinguished is 
approximately $1.1m per year. The additional 
contributions remitted during the year are included in 
the total employer contributions set out in Note 4(a). 
 
The share of this deficit that can be broadly attributed 

to Council was estimated to be in the order of $2.3m 
as at 30 June 2015. 
 

15. LEASES 
Lease arrangements have been accounted for in 
accordance with AASB 117. 
  
Council is not leasing any items under finance lease, 
which are leases that effectively transfer to Council 
substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership. 
  
In respect of operating leases, where the lessor 
substantially retains all of the risks and benefits 
incident to ownership of the leased items, lease 
payments are charged to expense over the lease 
term. 
  

16. GST IMPLICATIONS 
Income, expenses and assets are all recognised net of 
the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax 
Office (ATO). 
 
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part 
of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the 
revenue / expense. 
 
Receivables and payables within the Statement of 
Financial Position are stated inclusive of any 
applicable GST. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable 
to the ATO is included as a current asset or current 
liability in the Statement of Financial Position. 
Operating cash flows within the Cash Flow Statement 
are on a gross basis, i.e. they are inclusive of GST 
where applicable. 
 
Investing and Financing cash flows are treated on a 
net basis (where recoverable form the ATO), i.e. they 
are exclusive of GST. Instead, the GST component of 
investing and financing activity cash flows which are 
recoverable from or payable to the ATO are classified 
as operating cash flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of 
the amount of GST recoverable from (or payable to) 
the ATO. 
 

17. ROUNDING 
Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial 
statements have been rounded off to the nearest 
thousand dollars. 
  

18. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND 
INTERPRETATIONS 
Certain new (or amended) accounting standards and 
interpretations have been published that are not 
mandatory for reporting periods ending 30 June 2015. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
Council has not adopted any of these standards 
early. 
 
Council’s assessment of the impact of these new 
standards and interpretations is set out below. 
 
Applicable to Local Government with implications: 
 
AASB 9 - Financial Instruments (and associated 
amending standards) 
 
AASB 9 replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement and has an effective 
date for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018 (and must be applied retrospectively). 
 
The overriding impact of AASB 9 is to change the 
requirements for the classification, measurement and 
disclosures associated with financial assets. 
 
Under the new requirements the four current 
categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139 
will be replaced with two measurement categories:  
 

 fair value, and 

 amortised cost (where financial assets will only be 
able to be measured at amortised cost where very 
specific conditions are met). 
 

AASB 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers 
and associated amending standards 
 
AASB 15 will introduce a five step process for revenue 
recognition with the core principle of the new Standard 
being that entities recognise revenue so as to depict 
the transfer of goods or services to customers in 
amounts that reflect the consideration (that is, 
payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. 
 
The changes in revenue recognition requirements in 
AASB 15 may cause changes to accounting policies 
relating to the timing and amount of revenue recorded 
in the financial statements as well as additional 
disclosures. 
 
The full impact of AASB 15 has not yet been 
ascertained or quantified. 
AASB 15 will replace AASB 118 which covers 
contracts for goods and services and AASB 111 which 
covers construction contracts. 
 
The effective date of this standard is for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2017. 
 
AASB 124 - Related Party Disclosures 
 
From 1 July 2016, AASB 124 Related Party 
Disclosures will apply to Council. 

 
This means that Council will be required to disclose 
information about related parties and Council 
transactions with those related parties. 
 
Related parties will more than likely include the Mayor, 
Councillors and certain Council staff. In addition, the 
close family members of those people and any 
organisations that they control or are associated with 
will be classified as related parties (and fall under the 
related party reporting requirements). 
 
AASB 2014 - 10 Sale or contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 
Venture 
 
The amendments address an acknowledged 
inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10 
and those in AASB 128 (2011), in dealing with the sale 
or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture. 
 
The main consequence of the amendments is that a 
full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction 
involves a business (whether it is housed in a 
subsidiary or not). 
 
A partial gain or loss is recognised when a transaction 
involves assets that do not constitute a business, even 
if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. 
 
The effective date of this standard is for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016. 
 
This standard will only impact Council where there has 
been a sale or contribution of assets between the 
entity and the associate/joint venture. 
 
AASB 2014 - 3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards - Accounting for 
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
[AASB 1 and AASB 11] 
 
This Standard amends AASB 11 to provide guidance 
on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint 
operations in which the activity constitutes a business. 
 
The amendments require: 
 
a. the acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in 

which the activity constitutes a business, as defined 
in AASB 3 Business Combinations, to apply all of 
the principles on business combinations accounting 
in AASB 3 and other Australian Accounting 
Standards except for those principles that conflict 
with the guidance in AASB 11; and 

b. the acquirer to disclose the information required by 
AASB 3 and other Australian Accounting Standards 
for business combinations. 
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Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

This Standard also makes an editorial correction to 
AASB 11. 
 
The effective date of this standard is for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016. 
 
If a joint operation is acquired during the reporting 
period, then this standard clarifies the accounting for 
the acquisition to be in accordance with AASB 3, i.e. 
assets and liabilities acquired to be measured at fair 
value. 
 
Not applicable to Local Government per se 
 
None. 
 
19. Rural Fire Service Assets 
Under section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997, 
“all fire fighting equipment purchased or constructed 
wholly or from money to the credit of the fund is to be 
vested in the Council of the area for or on behalf of 
which the fire fighting equipment has been purchased 
or constructed”. Until such time as discussions on this 
matter have concluded and the legislation changed, 
Council will continue to account for these assets as 
they have been doing in previous years. 
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Note 3—Income from Continuing Operations 
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Note 3—Income from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 3—Income from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 3—Income from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 3—Income from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 4—Expenses from Continuing Operations 
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Note 4—Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 4—Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 4—Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued) 
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Note 5—Gain or Loss from Disposal of Assets 
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Note 6—Cash and Cash Equivalents / Investments 
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Note 6—Cash and Cash Equivalents / Investments (continued) 
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Note 6—Cash and Cash Equivalents / Investments (continued) 
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Note 6—Cash and Cash Equivalents / Investments (continued) 
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Note 7—Receivables 
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Note 7—Receivables (continued) 

RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 

Rates are secured by underlying properties. Interest is charged on overdue rates at the rate allowable 
(2014-15—8.5%, 2013-14—9%) under the Local Government Act. Rates are due for payment on the 
last day of August, November, February and May as determined in accordance with the Local 
Government Act. 
  
Overdue Rates and Annual Charges are those not paid within one day of the due date. Interest is 
charged on the overdue amount. Where collection of the debt is doubtful and the assessed value of the 
property is less than the amount outstanding a provision for doubtful debt is recognised for the shortfall.  
 
Although Council is not materially exposed to any individual ratepayer, credit risk exposure is 
concentrated within Council boundaries. 
  

USER CHARGES AND FEES 

User charges and fees are unsecured. The credit risk for this class of debtor is 100% of the carrying 
value. A provision for doubtful debts in respect for this class of debtor has already been provided in an 
amount shown on the previous page. 
  

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

Government Grants & Subsidies (subject to the terms and conditions of the relevant agreement) have 
been guaranteed. 
  

OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Amounts due (other than User Charges which are secured over the relevant land) are unsecured and 
do not bear interest. Although Council is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk 
exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries in the State of New South Wales. 
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Note 8—Inventories and Other Assets 
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Note 8—Inventories and Other Assets (continued) 
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Note 10—Payables, Borrowings, and Provisions 
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Note 10—Payables, Borrowings, and Provisions (continued) 
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Note 11—Reconciliation of Cash Flow Statement 
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Note 11—Reconciliation of Cash Flow Statement (continued) 

l 
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Note 12—Commitments 
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Note 12—Commitments (continued) 
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Note 13—Statement of Performance Measures 

Commentary 

This ratio measures Council’s achievement of 
containing operating expenditure within operating 
revenue. It is important to note that this ratio 
excludes Capital Grants and Contributions, which 
fluctuates from year-to-year and is where Council 
receives a significant portion of its funding. For 
2014-15, Council received $46.6m from Capital 
Grants and Contributions as outlined in Note 3(e) 
and 3(f). The benchmark for this indicator is 
anything greater than 0%. The 2013-14 indicator 
was impacted by the $14.1m payment for Erskine 
Park Link Road (see footnote 5). 

Commentary 

This ratio measures the degree of reliance on 
external funding sources. The benchmark for this 
indicator is anything greater than 60%. Council’s 
indicator here is typically strong, however this 
indicator is impacted by fluctuations in Grants and 
Contributions, as well as changes in investment 
returns, and User Fees and Charges. 

6.23%

-8.03%

0.96%

-5.38%

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

68.29%

72.85%

67.96%

68.49%

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011
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Note 13—Statement of Performance Measures (continued) 

Commentary 

This ratio measures Council’s liquidity and 
solvency. This result is significantly stronger than 
the 2014 result mainly due to the $14.1m 
payment to the Department of Infrastructure and 
Planning as discussed in footnotes, and is higher 
than the benchmark for this indicator of greater 
than 1.5. Once adjusted for internal borrowings, 
this indicator increases to 1.95 and exceeds 
Council’s benchmark of 1.25. 

Commentary 

This ratio measures the availably of operating 
cash to service debt including interest, principal, 
and lease payments. The benchmark is greater 
than 2 times. The indicator for 2014 was 
impacted by the $14.1m payment to the 
Department of Infrastructure and Planning as 
discussed in the footnotes, and is also impacted 
by the fluctuations is Grants and Contributions 
that Council receives. Excluding the $14.1m 
payment from the 2014 calculation, this indicator 
would have been 1.81. 

1.64 

1.10 

1.19 

1.31 

1.19 

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2.68 

0.72 

1.99 

2.86 

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011
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Note 13—Statement of Performance Measures (continued) 

Commentary 

This indicator has seen a further strong 
improvement over 2014-15, and is below the 
OLG’s benchmark of 5%. Council continues to 
remain active in the area of debt recovery to 
ensure that this indicator remains below the 
benchmark. 

Commentary 

This liquidity ratio indicates the number of months 
Council can continue paying for its immediate 
expenses without additional cash inflow. The 
benchmark is greater than 3 months. The 2014 
indicator is impacted by the $14.1m payment to 
the Department of Infrastructure and Planning. 
Excluding the $14.1m payment from the above 
calculation (see footnote 5 ), the 2014 indicator 
would be 3.80. 

3.36%

3.87%

4.83%

5.73%

5.60%

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

4.61 

2.92 

4.37 

4.26 

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011
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Note 13—Statement of Performance Measures (continued) 
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Note 14—Investment Properties 
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Note 14—Investment Properties (cont) 
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Note 15—Financial Risk Management 
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Note 15—Financial Risk Management (continued) 
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Note 15—Financial Risk Management (continued) 
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Note 15—Financial Risk Management (continued) 
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations 

Council's original budget for 2014-15 was adopted by Council on 29 June 2014. 
  
While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the 
original budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act requires Council to review its budget on 
a quarterly basis, so that it is able to manage the variations between actuals and budget that occur 
throughout the year. 
  
This note sets out the details of MATERIAL VARIATIONS between Council's original budget and its 
actual results for the year as per the Income Statement - even though such variations may have been 
adjusted for during each quarterly review. 
 
Material variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted 
figure. 

Category [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable Variance 

Interest and 
Investment 
Revenues 

 
65% F 
$1m 

The end of year surplus was achieved due to the return on Council’s investments exceeding the 
benchmarks throughout the year and the unrestricted portion of the portfolio being higher than 
anticipated. Although the cash rate was reduced to 2% in May, and had been at record low levels all 
year, Council’s portfolio earned an average 3.38%. This is due to Council's investments in bank term 
deposits and floating rate notes that return a good margin above the Bank Bill Swap Rate. 

Grants and 
Contributions—

Capital 
 

102% F 
$23.5m 

Land Under Roads recognition ($11.9m) and Roads and Drainage Dedications ($5.6m) not included in 
the original budget. In addition to this, S94 income was higher than anticipated ($4.4m). 

2,650 

1,603 

Actual

Budget

46,580 

23,114 

Actual

Budget
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations (continued) 

Category [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable Variance 

Other Revenues  
74% F 
$3.6m 

Fair Value Adjustments on Investment Properties ($1.3m), Fair Value Adjustments on Investments 
(-$172,000), Other Investment Income ($1.2m) not included in original budget. A Better Waste and 
Recycling Contribution was received that was not included in the original budget ($406,000).  

Share of Net 
Profits—Joint 

Ventures & 
Associated 

 
1170% F 
$585,000 

The original budget for the share of profit in Westpool and UIP (see note 19) is set assuming the joint 
venture will return a small surplus. These results vary each year depending on the expenses incurred in 
managing insurance activities. 

Depreciation & 
Amortisation 

 
17% F 
$4.4m 

The budget is set on a conservative basis to cover any significant movements in depreciation resulting 
from change in condition of Councils assets, and adjusted at year end. The main variance is due to 
depreciation on Council's roads in which indexes are provided at the end of each financial year. 

8,584 

4,938 

Actual

Budget

635 

50 

Actual

Budget

21,915 

26,325 

Actual

Budget
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations (continued) 

Category [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable Variance 

Net Losses from 
Disposal of 

Assets 
 

221% F 
$1.1m 

This variation relates primarily to the sale of two of Council's properties that were not originally 
budgeted for (refer to Note 5). 

Other 
Expenses 

 
26% U 
$4.1m 

Waste Levy included in “Materials and Contracts” in Original Budget ($3.7m), street lighting was over 
budget ($94k) for this financial year. 

Cash Flows from 
Operating 
Activities 

 
13% F 
$4.9m 

The budget for the Cash Flow Statements is based on a number of assumptions that are difficult to 
accurately predict. Payments for materials and contracts ($57.2m) were less than budgeted for and 
other payments ($17.8m) were higher than budgeted. 

20,169 

16,025 

Actual

Budget

(587)

486 

Actual

Budget

44,089

39,163 

Actual

Budget
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations (continued) 

Category [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable Variance 

Cash Flows from 
Financing 
Activities 

 
143% F 

$210,000 

Proceeds from Borrowing & Advances was $6.6m over budget resulting in a favourable variance. The 
budget is an estimate set before prior year figures are finalised. 

Cash Flows from 
Investing 
Activities 

 
53% F 
$42.2m 

The purchase of investment securities was significantly higher than budgeted for, as was the purchase 
of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment. The budget for these items is based on forecasted 
figures before 2013-14 actuals are finalised and are difficult to predict in advance. 

(36,802)

(78,997)

Actual

Budget

63

(147)

Actual

Budget
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations (continued) 

 [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable  

Income (by Functions) 
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations (continued) 

 [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable  

Income (by Functions) - continued 
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Note 16—Material Budget Variations (continued) 

 [U]—Unfavourable     $’000       [F]—Favourable  

Expenditure (by Functions) 
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Note 17—Statement of Developer Contributions 
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Note 17—Statement of Developer Contributions (continued) 
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Note 17—Statement of Developer Contributions (continued) 
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Note 17—Statement of Developer Contributions (continued) 
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Note 17—Statement of Developer Contributions (continued) 
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Note 18—Contingencies 

The following contingencies do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position but 
knowledge of those items is considered relevant to user of the financial statements in making and 
evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce resources. 
 
1. Council has guaranteed a loan of $450,000 to Penrith Valley Regional Sports Stadium. The loan 

financed building on land leased to Penrith Sports Stadium Ltd by Council until 10 October 2087. 
Council will be entitled to cancel the lease if action is taken to enforce the guarantee. 

2. Borrowings are secured by mortgages over Council’s incomes. 
 
 

DEFINED BENEFIT SUPERANNUATION PLAN 

Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme which has a closed section 
where a portion of member entitlements are defined as a multiple of salary. The rate for 2014-15 was 
1.9 times members’ contributions (1.9 times in 2013-14) plus a basic benefit of 2.5% of the member’s 
salary (2.5% in 2013-14). Member councils bear the responsibility of ensuring there are sufficient 
monies available to pay out benefits as these members cease employment. The position of this scheme 
is monitored annually and the Actuary has estimated that as at 30 June 2015 a deficit still exists. The 
last valuation of the Fund was performed by Mr Martin Stevenson BSc, FIA, FIAA on 20 February 2013. 
 
Effective from 1 July 2009, employers have been required to contribute additional contributions to assist 
in extinguishing this deficit. However, the Trustees may also call upon Councils to make an immediate 
payment sufficient to offset all or part of this deficit at any time. There is no current indication that such 
action will be necessary, however, the Trustees may also extend the timeframe for making additional 
contributions. 
 
As the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and liabilities are pooled together for all member 
councils, the amount of such a payment is not able to be reliably quantified. The share of this deficit that 
can be broadly attributed to Council was estimated to be in the order of $2.3m as at 30 June 2015. 
LGSS have advised a revised payment calculation for contributions to this scheme, which includes an 
additional flat rate of $1.08m per year. 
 
 

DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS REVIEW 

On 4 June 2010, the Premier of NSW announced changes to the Developer Contributions planning 
process which capped residential development contributions to $20,000 per new lot/dwelling. On 31 
August 2010, this cap was increased to $30,000 per new lot/dwelling for greenfield release areas and 
applies to the Werrington Enterprise Living and Learning (WELL) Precinct and Glenmore Park Stage 2.  
 
As a consequence of a Voluntary Planning Agreement (VPA) being negotiating with Glenmore Park 
Stage 2 landowners, the cap’s impact is limited to the WELL Precinct. The infrastructure funding gap 
arising for new development in the WELL Precinct is estimated at $46.5 million and would affect the 
WELL Precinct, District Open Space, and Cultural Facilities s94 Plans. 
  
Following analysis of the physical, social and financial impacts of the cap on the WELL Precinct and the 
Penrith City community, Council, on 27 June 2011, resolved to require new development within the 
WELL Precinct to provide all drainage and most roadworks by way of conditions of development 
consent. Contributions up to $30,000 per lot would be levied for open space, community and cultural 
facilities. Application of this resolution seeks to ensure that no infrastructure funding gaps arise under 
the three contributions plans applying to the WELL Precinct.  
 
The White Paper – A new planning system for NSW and draft planning legislation were released on 16 

April 2013. If the White Paper changes to the new planning system are implemented, a minimum of 
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Note 18—Contingencies (cont) 

approximately $116 million in contributions income would be affected, or a significant reduction in the 
nature and scale of facilities being funded and our strategic directions for certain precincts – such as 
Penrith City centre -  would occur. Contributions Plans funding open space, and community and cultural 
facilities would be especially significantly adversely affected. The White Paper does propose 
abandoning the $30,000 cap on contributions. 
 
The White Paper did not provide details on savings and transitional arrangements for existing 
contributions plans, resulting in uncertainty as to their future status and financial exposure for Council. 
Council has requested the Minister ensure appropriate transitional provisions apply, particularly for 
those s94 plans which repay advance funded local infrastructure. The Cultural Facilities and Kingswood 
Neighbourhood Centre s94 Plans are affected by this issue. The value of advance funded works in 
these plans is approximately $5.6 million. The Minister’s response to this issue recognises the need for 
appropriate transitional provisions, however to date there has yet to be an announcement on the 
Government’s intended direction. When the transitional provisions are concluded, Council will be better 
informed as to the impact on the affected plans and thus the gap that would be required to be funded 
by Council if State funding is not available. 
 
New planning legislation, including details on a new contributions system was scheduled to be enacted 
in January / February 2014, however this did not occur and no date has been announced as to when 
the new planning legislation will be enacted. 
 
Council has continued its lobbying on this and associated s94 planning issues since changes to the 
planning process and $30,000 cap were announced. In 2015 we secured lobbying support for Council’s 
position from WSROC and neighbouring councils in Blue Mountains, Liverpool and Wollondilly and 
MACROC is also preparing to examine the issue. This recognises the wide implications of the cap and 
transitional provisions for local government. 
 
 

RECOVERY OF INVESTMENTS 

In June 2013 a Statement of Claim was lodged by Council against its investment advisors that were 
utilised between 2006 and 2011. The claim seeks to recover losses arising from Council’s investments, 
and subsequent losses, in structured investment products, including $2m in Collateralised Debt 
Obligations (CDOs) that were recommended by the investment advisors at the time prior to placement. 
 
These investments were exposed to significant risk due to the United States sub-prime mortgage crisis 
and the CDOs gradually lost value during 2007 and 2008. Due to the minimal chance of recovering 
these investments, Council wrote off the total investment value of $2m in the 2008-09 Financial 
Statements. 
 
This Claim also involves Council's investment of $3m in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS), which 
were also recommended to Council by the same investment advisors during 2007. Although these MBS 
are continuing to pay regular coupons, they have lost considerable value and, subsequent after 
placement, have a deferred maturity date past 2050. 
 
This matter was partially resolved during 2014-15, however further legal action is occurring. The 
outcome of this action will be reported in due course. 
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Note 19—Interests in Joint Ventures and Associates 
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Note 19—Interests in Joint Ventures and Associates (continued) 

$ '000
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Note 19—Interests in Joint Ventures and Associates (continued) 
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Note 20—Revaluation Reserves and Retained Earnings 
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Note 22—Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement (continued) 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement (continued) 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values 
 
Where Council is unable to derive Fair Valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (i.e. Level 1 
inputs), Council instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (Level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs 
(Level 3 inputs). 
 
The Fair Valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows: 

  
Asset / Liability 

Category 

  
Carrying Amount 

(at Fair Value) 
(30 June 2015) 

$’000 

Key Unobservable 
Inputs 

Expected Range 
of Inputs 

Description of how 
changes in inputs 

will affect Fair Value 

Investments – At 
Fair Value through 
profit or loss 

1,839  Unit Price 

 Ranges 
between 60c 
and 84c per 
$1.00 

Significant changes in 
the estimated unit 
price would result in 
significant changes to 
Fair Value 
measurement. 

  
Asset / Liability 

Category 

  
Carrying Amount 

(at Fair Value) 
(30 June 2015) 

$’000 

Key Unobservable 
Inputs 

Expected Range 
of Inputs 

Description of how 
changes in inputs 

will affect Fair Value 

Investment 
Properties 

15,388 

 Rental yield 

 External 
valuations 

 Valuation from 
Council’s 
certified valuer. 

 Varies 
significantly 
from property to 
property 

Significant changes in 
the rental yield or 
housing prices in the 
suburb where the 
property is located 
would result in 
significant changes to 
fair value 
measurement. 

Financial Assets 

Investment Properties 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

  
Asset / Liability 

Category 

  
Carrying Amount 

(at Fair Value) 
(30 June 2015) 

$’000 

Key Unobservable 
Inputs 

Expected Range 
of Inputs 

Description of how 
changes in inputs will 

affect Fair Value 

Plant & 
Equipment, Office 
Equipment, 
Furniture & 
Fittings 

23,829 

 Gross 
Replacement 
Cost 

 Remaining 
Useful Life 

 Residual Value 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

 5 to 20 years 
 0 – 30% 

Changes in the pattern 
of consumption would 
affect the residual value 
and useful life of the 
asset resulting in a 
change in the fair value 
measurement. 

Operational Land 82,056 

 Value is 
determined by 
increases in 
market values in 
the suburb 
where the land 
is located. 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

Changes in the median 
sale prices in the area 
where the land is 
located would directly 
affect the fair value 
measurements. 

Community Land 181,379 

 Value is 
provided by the 
Valuer General 
based on the 
changes in 
market values in 
the suburb 
where the land 
is located. 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

Changes in the median 
sale prices in the area 
which the land is 
located would directly 
affect the fair value 
measurements. 

Land Under 
Roads 

1,381,015 
 Price per square 

metre 

 $44.94 per 
square metre 

Significant changes in 
the price per square 
metre would result in 
significant changes to 
fair value 
measurement. 

Land 
Improvements – 
Depreciable 

9,100 

 Gross 
Replacement 
Cost 

 Asset Condition 
 Remaining 

useful life 
 Residual value 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

 Very poor to 
excellent 

 0 – 100 years 

Significant changes in 
the gross replacement 
value, asset condition, 
and pattern of 
consumption affecting 
the remaining useful life 
or residual value would 
result in significant 
changes to fair value 
measurement. 

Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (IPPE) 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

Buildings 210,927 

 Gross 
Replacement 
Cost 

 Asset Condition 

 Remaining 
useful life 

 Residual value 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

 Very poor to 
excellent 

 0 – 100 years 

Significant changes in 
the gross replacement 
value, asset condition, 
and pattern of 
consumption affecting 
the remaining useful 
life or residual value 
would result in 
significant changes to 
fair value 
measurement. 

Roads 725,023 

 Gross 
Replacement 
Cost 

 Asset Condition 

 Remaining 
useful life 

 Residual vale 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

 Poor to 
excellent 

 0 – 100 years 
 0% - 100% 

Significant changes in 
the gross replacement 
value, asset condition, 
and pattern of 
consumption affecting 
the remaining useful 
life or residual value 
would result in 
significant changes to 
fair value 
measurement. 

Stormwater 
Drainage 

239,803 

 Gross 
Replacement 
Cost 

 Asset condition 

 Remaining 
useful life 

 Residual value 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

 Very poor to 
very excellent 

 0 – 100 years 
 0% - 50% 

Significant changes in 
the gross replacement 
value, asset condition, 
and pattern of 
consumption affecting 
the remaining useful 
life or residual value 
would result in 
significant changes to 
fair value 
measurement. 

Library Books 2,054 

 Gross 
Replacement 
Cost 

 Asset Condition 
 Remaining 

Useful Life 
 Residual Value 

 Varies 
significantly 
from asset to 
asset 

 Very poor to 
excellent 

 0 – 7 years 
 0% 

Significant changes in 
the gross replacement 
value, asset condition, 
and pattern of 
consumption affecting 
the remaining useful 
life or residual value 
would result in 
significant changes to 
fair value 
measurement. 

  
Asset / Liability 

Category 

  
Carrying Amount 

(at Fair Value) 
(30 June 2015) 

$’000 

Key Unobservable 
Inputs 

Expected Range 
of Inputs 

Description of how 
changes in inputs 

will affect Fair Value 
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Note 27—Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

5. Highest and best use 
 
All of Council’s non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use. 
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Council’s Certificate—SPFR 
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Income Statement by Business Activities 
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SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Income Statement by Business Activities (continued) 
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Income Statement by Business Activities (continued) 
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SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Income Statement by Business Activities (continued) 
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Income Statement by Business Activities (continued) 
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SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Statement of Financial Position by Business Activities 
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Statement of Financial Position by Business Activities (continued) 
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SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Statement of Financial Position by Business Activities (continued) 
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Statement of Financial Position by Business Activities (continued) 
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SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Statement of Financial Position by Business Activities (continued) 
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Declared Business Activities 
In accordance with Pricing & Costing for Council 
Businesses - A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, 
Council has declared that the following are to be 
considered as business activities: 
 
Category 1 
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million) 

 
Childcare 
Council operates a number of children’s centres and 
includes the transactions associated with these 
centres in its consolidated fund. The centres include 
18 providing long day care services, 9 providing 
before and after school care services, 1 occasional 
care service and 5 preschool services. The Penrith 
City Children’s Services Co-operative, established in 
January 2003, manages the Children’s Centres 
(excluding the Glenmore Park Child & Family Centre) 
through a delegation under S377 of the Local 
Government Act 1993. 
 
Council Pools 
Includes all activities conducted at Ripples Aquatic 
Centre (such as gymnasium and aerobics). Penrith 
Pool is also included.  The business activity is 
considered to be a tenant. 
 
Property Development 
The purchase, development, rental, and management 
of real estate. Almost all assets would have dual 
purposes of revenue generation and community 
service. Community service purposes include 
preventing inappropriate development, attracting 
business into the region and providing shopping 
facilities to new estates (when the population does not 
yet support profitable trading). 
 
Whitewater Stadium 
Penrith Whitewater Stadium provides whitewater 
canoe slalom facilities for competition, training and 
recreation purposes. 
 
Penrith Performing and Visual Arts Limited 
During 2006-07 the Penrith Regional Gallery and 
Lewers Bequest was joined with the Joan Sutherland 
Performing Arts Centre to be managed by a revised 
company structure named Penrith Performing and 
Visual Arts Limited.  This new entity provides gallery, 
theatre, function and educational facilities. The centres 
organise activities and also provide for hire of venues. 
Many items, and in particular, the educational 
programs are community services. The venues are 
provided to community groups at a discounted rental. 
The business is a tenant and a market rental has been 
estimated. 
 
 

These Financial Statements are a Special Purpose 
Financial Statements (SPFS) prepared for use by 
Council and the Office of Local Government. 
 
For the purposes of these statements, the Council is 
not a reporting not-for-profit entity. 
 
The figures presented in these Special Purpose 
Financial Statements, unless otherwise stated, have 
been prepared in accordance with: 
 

 the recognition and measurement criteria of 
relevant Australian Accounting Standards, 

 other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) 
and Australian Accounting Interpretations. 

 
The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial 
Statements have been prepared in accordance with: 
 

 the Local Government Act and Regulation, and 

 the Local Government Code of Accounting 
Practice and Financial Reporting. 

 
The statements are also prepared on an accruals 
basis, based on historic costs and do not take into 
account changing money values nor current values of 
non-current assets (except where specifically stated). 
 
Certain taxes and other costs (appropriately 
described) have been imputed for the purposes of the 
National Competition Policy. 
 
National Competition Policy 
Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive 
neutrality’ to its business activities as part of the 
national competition policy which is being applied 
throughout Australia at all levels of government. 
 
The framework for its application is set out in the June 
1996 Government Policy statement on the “Application 
of National Competition Policy to Local Government”. 
 
The “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses A 
Guide to Competitive Neutrality” issued by the Office 
of Local Government in July 1997 has also been 
adopted. 
 
The pricing & costing guidelines outline the process 
for identifying and allocating costs to activities and 
provide a standard of disclosure requirements. These 
disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or 
financial reporting systems and include taxation 
equivalents; council subsidies; return on investments 
(rate of return); and dividends paid. 
 
 

Note 1—Significant Accounting Policies 
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Note 1—Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Category 2 

(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million) 
 
Cemeteries 
Provides for burials and for internment of ashes. The 
land on which these operations are conducted are 
owned by trusts and Council is the manager of the 
trusts. The management function is considered a 
business activity. No rental charge of the land has 
been imputed. 
 
Tennis Courts 
45 Tennis Courts are managed under various 
structures. 
 
St Clair Recreation Centre 
Indoor sporting and gymnastics facilities. 
 
Halls 
15 Halls may be hired and are managed under various 
structures. Catering services is not available from 
Council. 
 
Contestable Services 
Services that can be provided by either Council or 
other businesses. 
 

Monetary Amounts 
Amounts shown in the Financial Statements are in 
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest one 
thousand dollars, with the exception of some figures 
disclosed in Note 2 (Water Supply Best Practice 
Management Disclosures) and Note 3 (Sewerage Best 
Practice Management Disclosures). 
 
As required by the NSW Office of Water (Department 
of Primary Industries) the amounts shown in Notes 2 
and Note 3 are disclosed in whole dollars. 
 

(i) Taxation Equivalent Charges 
Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial 
duties in undertaking its business activities. Where this 
is the case, they are disclosed in these statements as 
a cost of operations just like all other costs. 
 
However, where Council is exempt from paying taxes 
which are generally paid by private sector businesses 
(such as income tax), equivalent tax payments have 
been applied to all Council nominated business 
activities and are reflected in these Financial 
Statements. 
 
For the purposes of disclosing comparative 
information relevant to the private sector equivalent, 
the following taxation equivalents have been applied 
to all council nominated business activities (this does 
not include council’s non-business activities): 
Notional Rate Applied % 

 
Corporate Income Tax Rate – 30% 
 
Land Tax – The first $432,000 of combined land 
values attracts 0%. From $432,001 to $2,641,000 the 
rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land 
value that exceeds $2,641,000, a premium marginal 
rate of 2.0% applies. 
 
Payroll Tax – 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries 
and wages in excess of $750,000. 
 
In accordance with the guidelines for Best Practice 
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage, a 
payment for the amount calculated as the annual tax 
equivalent charges (excluding income tax) must be 
paid from Water Supply and Sewerage Business 
activities. 
 
The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred 
in the Best Practice Management of Water Supply and 
Sewerage Guides to as a “Dividend for Taxation 
equivalent”, may be applied for any purpose allowed 
under the Local Government Act, 1993. 
 
Achievement of substantial compliance against the 
guidelines for Best Practice Management of Water 
Supply and Sewerage is not a prerequisite for the 
payment of the tax equivalent charges, however the 
payment must not exceed $3 per assessment. 
 
Income Tax 
An income tax equivalent has been applied on the 
profits of each reported Business Activity. 
 
Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose 
of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into 
account of in terms of assessing the rate of return 
required on capital invested. 
 
Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a 
pre-tax level (gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before 
capital amounts) as would be applied by a private 
sector competitor – that is, it should include a 
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate, 
currently 30%. 
 
Income Tax is only applied where a positive gain/
(loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts 
has been achieved. 
 
Since this taxation equivalent is notional - that is, it is 
payable to the “Council” as the owner of business 
operations, it represents an internal payment and has 
no effect on the operations of the council. Accordingly, 
there is no need for disclosure of internal charges in 
Council's General Purpose Financial Statements. 
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The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent company tax 
rate prevalent as at balance date. No adjustments 
have been made for variations that have occurred 
during the year. 
 
Local Government Rates & Charges 
A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges 
payable on all Category 1 businesses has been 
applied to all land assets owned or exclusively used 
by the Business Activity. 
 
Loan & Debt Guarantee Fees 
The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that 
council business activities face “true” commercial 
borrowing costs in line with private sector competitors.  
 
In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, council has 
determined what the differential borrowing rate would 
have been between the commercial rate and the 
council’s borrowing rate for its business activities. 
 

(ii) Subsidies 
Government policy requires that subsidies provided to 
customers and the funding of those subsidies must be 
explicitly disclosed. 
 
Subsidies occur where council provides services on a 
less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised 
on a range of services in order for council to meet its 
community service obligations. 
 
Accordingly, Subsidies disclosed (in relation to 
National Competition Policy) represents the difference 
between revenue generated from ‘rate of return’ 
pricing and revenue generated from prices set by the 
council in any given financial year. 
 
The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the 
Income Statement of each reported Business Activity. 
 

(iii) Return on Investments (Rate of Return) 
The Policy statement requires that councils with 
Category 1 businesses “would be expected to 
generate a return on capital funds employed that is 
comparable to rates of return for private businesses 
operating in a similar field”. 
 
Such funds are subsequently available for meeting 
commitments or financing future investment 
strategies. 
 
The Rate of Return on Capital is calculated as follows: 
 
Operating Result before Capital Income + Interest Expense 

Written Down Value of I,PP&E as at 30 June 

 
 

As a minimum, business activities should generate a 
return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate 
which is 3.09% at 30/6/15. 
 
The actual rate of return achieved by each Business 
Activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective 
Income Statement. 
 
 

(iv) Dividends 
Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself 
(as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external 
entities. 
 
Local Government Water Supply and Sewerage 
Businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend 
from its water supply or sewerage business surplus. 
 
The dividend, calculated and approved in accordance 
with the Best Practice Management Guidelines, must 
not exceed either: 
 
i. 50% of this surplus in any one year, or 
ii. the number of water supply or sewerage 

assessments at 30 June 2015 multiplied by $30 
(less the payment for tax equivalent charges, not 

exceeding $3 per assessment). 
 
In accordance with the guidelines for Best Practice 
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage, a 
Dividend Payment form, Statement of Compliance, 
Unqualified Independent Financial Audit Report and 
Compliance Audit Report are required to be submitted 
to the NSW Office of Water prior to making the 
dividend and only after it has approved the payment. 

Note 1—Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
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SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO. 1 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Net Cost of Services ($’000) 
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SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO. 1 
for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Net Cost of Services ($’000) continued 
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SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO. 7 
as at 30 June 2015 

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued) 
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SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO. 9 
as at 30 June 2015 

Permissible Income Calculation 
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APPENDIX 1—HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA 

Income Statement 
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APPENDIX 1—HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA 

Statement of Financial Position 
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APPENDIX 2—RATES AND CHARGES 

Comparative Rates Statistics 
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APPENDIX 2—RATES AND CHARGES 

Comparative Rates Statistics (continued) 
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APPENDIX 3 

Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) 
Sustainable Finances Health Check 

The Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) Sustainable Finances Health Check was developed through a 
consultative process aimed at establishing a tool allowing Council to better assess its financial condition. What 
resulted are the following indicators that were considered key to enabling this assessment to be made. In 
conjunction with the completion of the 2014-15 Financial Statements, the Local Government Managers Australia 
(LGMA) Sustainable Finances Health Check has been updated to incorporate these figures. 
 
1. REVENUE SOURCES 

Sources of Total Ordinary Revenue before Capital. Revenue from Ordinary Activities is classified by source as 
either from (shown in $ millions): 

The revenue sources indicator provides the opportunity to understand and track the relative sources of revenue 
received by Council. Monitoring this indicator will enable Council to better measure and assess the degree of 
dependency on particular revenue sources. The stability of any ‘over dependent’ revenue source should be 
considered. A further dissection of the above information is available in Note 3 of Council’s Financial Statements. 
 
Comment: Revenue from charges imposed on the community constituted 78.7% of Council’s revenue in 
2014-15. Given the nature of these charges, this revenue stream is considered secure and sustainable in the long
-term and has been strengthened by the Special Rate Variation. 
 
2. CASH / LIQUIDITY POSITION 

Scale:  Unrestricted Current Ratio <1.1 = Red, 1.1 to 2.1 = Amber, Over 2.1 = Green 

The Unrestricted Current Ratio aims to measure Council’s liquidity and more importantly, Council’s solvency. This 
indicator enables Council to assess whether debts will be able to be paid as they fall due, or whether 
arrangements should be put in place to raise additional funds or liquidate assets. 

$ % $ % $ % $ % $ %

Rates and Charges

- General Purpose 93.7     47.4     88.1     49.5     82.8     48.4     79.7     44.4     74.0     44.9     

- Specific Purpose (DWM) 26.1     13.2     24.1     13.6     21.7     12.7     18.9     10.5     16.6     10.1     

User Charges and Fees 35.9     18.1     34.3     19.3     32.3     18.9     31.4     17.5     30.5     18.5     

Interest 2.7       1.4       3.0       1.7       3.1       1.8       4.2       2.3       3.8       2.3       

Grants (Operating)

- General Purpose 10.0     5.1       5.8       3.3       9.6       5.6       15.1     8.4       12.4     7.5       

- Specific Purpose (DWM) 17.7     8.9       13.5     7.6       11.7     6.8       18.2     10.1     18.7     11.3     

Contributions 2.5       1.3       2.7       1.5       3.0       1.8       3.1       1.7       2.5       1.5       

Profit on Sale of Assets 0.6       0.3       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       

Other 8.6       4.3       6.3       3.5       6.9       4.0       8.9       5.0       6.3       3.8       

Total Ordinary Revenue 

before Capital
    197.8     100.0     177.8     100.0     171.1     100.0     179.5     100.0     164.8     100.0 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Unrestricted Current Ratio 1.64             1.10             1.19             1.31             1.19             

Available Cash Position

- Available Cash Assets ($'000) 35,829         19,078         22,760         22,818         18,032         

- Unrestricted Cash Assets ($'000) 2,989           2,323           4,200           4,287           1,939           

Availability of Cash Assets as a % of Total Revenue

- Available Cash Assets 18.06           10.67           13.24           12.69           10.91           

- Unrestricted Cash Assets 1.51             1.30             2.44             2.38             1.17             
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Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) 
Sustainable Finances Health Check (continued) 

Available Cash Assets are defined as total cash assets held by Council less any externally restricted 
assets. This indicator presents the available cash assets as both a dollar value and percentage of total revenue 
respectively. This indicator is produced to enable users to better assess the Unrestricted Cash Ratio and the 
impact of unforeseen commitments. 
 
Unrestricted Available Cash Assets takes the above one step further and subtracts both external and 
internal restrictions from the total cash assets held. This indicator highlights cash assets that are completely free 
of usage restriction and is similar to ‘working funds’. Like the Available Cash Assets indicator, the Unrestricted 
Available Cash Assets indicator is used as a guide to interpreting and better understanding the Unrestricted 
Current Ratio. 
 
Comment: the current year Unrestricted Current Ratio of 1.64:1 achieves a rating of Amber and is higher 
than last year (1.10:1). Council’s practice of forward funding S94 expenditure in advance of contributions from 
internal reserves continues to constrain this indicator. Excluding these borrowings from the calculations would 
result in a UCR of 1.95:1 for 2014-15. 
 
3. OPERATING RESULT 

Trend analysis of Operating Results enables Council to determine if the current level of services can be sustained 
in the future. Successive negative results suggest a review of Council’s strategic directions may be required. 

 
Comment: This year’s result was an improvement over the previous year, which was impacted by the 
$14.1m payment to the Department of Infrastructure and Planning as Council’s share of the Lenore Drive project. 
There was also an improvement in revenue, and a decline in expenses for 2014-15 that added to this result. 
 
4. ASSET CONDITION MANAGEMENT 

Scale:  Asset Renewal  => 1 = Green, less than 1 = Red 
   Asset Maintenance => 1 = Green, less than 1 = Red 

 

Asset Renewal is a ratio of funds spent renewing assets to annual depreciation of assets. This ratio 
allows an insight into the condition and cost to maintain public infrastructure assets. 

Asset Maintenance is a comparison of the amount of funds spent on maintenance compared to the 
amount of funds required to maintain. 

Asset Life Position shows the average life years of assets used to date as a percentage and is calculated 
by comparing Accumulated Depreciation and Total Asset Value. 
 
Comment: Asset Renewal has scored a rating of Green. Asset Maintenance scores a Green rating. Both 
indicators are measuring the amount of funds spent compared to the amount required to be spent to ensure that 
Councils existing assets remain at an acceptable standard. Council’s commitment to addressing our 
infrastructure backlog has seen increased funding for asset maintenance and renewal, and development of 
renewal programs for all key asset classes in recent years. The review of the LTFP and Resource Strategy 
during 2011-12 highlighted that while progress is being made in a number of asset classes, Council did not have 
the capacity to fully fund all identified asset renewal programs and addressing our infrastructure backlog was one 
of the key drivers for the current Special Rate Variation. As a result  Council now has a program in place to 
address the identified infrastructure backlog for all key asset classes. Special Schedule 7 provides further 
information about the condition of these assets. 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Result from Ordinary Operations before 

Capital Grants and Contributions
14,833       (13,732)      841            (7,564)        (18,020)      

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Asset Renewal 2.79             2.87             3.55             1.38             0.85             

Maintenance / Maintenance Required 1.14             1.19             1.17             1.06             1.06             

Asset Life Position 18.04% 16.92% 17.18% 16.60% 16.97%
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APPENDIX 3 

Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) 
Sustainable Finances Health Check (continued) 

5. DEBT AND DEBTOR MANAGEMENT 

Scale:  Debt Service Ratio <15% = Green, 15-20% = Amber, >20% = Red 
 Outstanding Rates <4% = Green, 4-5% = Amber, > 5% = Red 
 Other Debtors <10% = Green, 10-15% = Amber, >15% = Red 

 
The Debt Service Ratio shows what proportion of revenue is required as a commitment to fund Council’s long 
term capacity to repay loans. 
 
Both the Outstanding Rates, Charges and Fees and Other Debtors Outstanding indicators reflect Councils ability 
to collect debts that are legally owed to it. Given the unique nature of each Local Government area it is difficult to 
benchmark and thus rate these indicators across Councils leaving them to be best used in trend analysis. 
 
Comment: The debt service ratio has reduced slightly over the prior year due to a higher level of revenue, 
and a similar level of borrowings between the two years and scores a Green rating. The Outstanding Rates, 
Charges and Fees has decreased compared to 2013-14, and scores a Amber rating. Other Debtors Outstanding 
has decreased over 2014-15 and scores a Red rating. 
 
6. REVOTES OF EXPENDITURE 

What % are your total revotes of expenditure compared to total annual expenditure? 

 
Scale:  <2% = Green, 2-5% = Amber, >5% = Red 
 
Comment: Revotes of Expenditure score a rating of Red this year, and is an slight increase over 2013-14. 
Significant revotes include amounts for the Andrews Road Wetlands Project, Better Boating Program, Kingsway 
Sporting Complex and Blair Oval All Weather Athletics, and Jamison Park Upgrades. 

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Debt Service Ratio 7.87% 7.92% 7.80% 7.40% 7.65%

Outstanding Rates, Charges & Fees 4.93% 5.57% 6.24% 5.70% 5.57%

Other Debtors Outstanding 19.22% 23.01% 19.90% 18.59% 23.63%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total Revotes of Expenditure compared to 

Total Annual Expenditure
5.85% 5.60% 4.20% 6.12% 4.09%
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Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) 
Sustainable Finances Health Check (continued) 

  Yes / No 

Financial bottom line (before Capital) matched to forecasts to a level of + or 
- 10%? 

 
No 

   

Receipt of an unqualified audit report?  Yes 

   

Statements lodged to meet compliance deadline?  Yes 

   

Timeliness of results and reporting to management and statutory 
authorities? 

 
 

 Do you report monthly to management – within 5 days of month end? 
(online reporting is available at all times) 

 
Yes 

 Do you report quarterly statutory – within 21 days of quarter end? 
(reporting is within statutory timeframes) 

 
No 

 Do you report annual statutory – within 21 days of year end? (reporting 
is within statutory timeframes) 

 
No 

   

Budgets incorporate a 3-year plan where the 2nd year becomes the base 
for the following year (a high level third-year budget is incorporated)? 

 

Yes 

   

Rigour of budget review and then ongoing monthly / quarterly budget to 
actual results analysis? 

 
Yes 

   

Does the Responsible Accounting Officer formally report to Council on the 
sign-off of the Financial Statements (section 413)? 

 
Yes 

7. ACCURACY / TIMELINESS OF FINANCIAL DATA / BUDGET / COMPLIANCE 


